# SUPPORTING PEOPLE IN KENT COMMISSIONING BODY

MINUTES of a meeting of the Supporting People In Kent Commissioning Body held in the Medway Room, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Thursday, 17 March 2011.

#### Present:

Ashford Borough Council: Canterbury City Council:	Mrs T Kerly Cllr T Austin and Mr P Peskett
, ,	
Dover District Council:	Cllr Mrs S Chandler
Kent County Council:	Mr M Hill (Chairman of the Commissioning
	Body)
Sevenoaks District Council	Cllr Mrs C Clark and Ms P Smith
Shepway District Council:	Cllr Mrs K Belcourt and Mr A Hammond
Swale Borough Council	Ms A Christou
Tonbridge & Malling BC	Cllr Mrs J Anderson and Mr J Batty
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council	Mr K Hetherington
Kent Probation:	Mr H Cohn

#### **KCC Officers:**

Mr O Mills, (Managing Director for Kent Adult Social Services), Ms A Slaven (Director of Youth and Community Support Services) Ms C Martin (Kent Supporting People Team), Mr H Manuel (KCC Finance Team) and G Mills, KCC Democratic Services.

#### UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

# 18. Apologies

(Item 2)

Noted.

## **19.** Minutes of the Meeting of the Commissioning Body

(Item 4)

The minutes of the meeting of the Commissioning Body held on 20 January 2011 were agreed and signed by the Chairman as a true record. Matters arising were dealt with as appropriate.

## 20. Minutes of the Core Strategy Group

(Item 5)

The Commissioning Body noted for information the Minutes of the meeting of the Core Strategy Group held on 28 February 2011.

## 21. Delivering the Savings Impact Assessment

(Item 6 – report by Angela Slaven, Director of Youth and Community Support Services)

(1) At its last meeting the Commissioning Body had considered a report setting out options for the savings which needed to be made in 2012/13.

The Commissioning Body had supported in principle the adoption of option two but agreed that both option one and option two should be the subject of more detailed analysis by the Core Strategy Group. The views of Gravesham Borough Council were reported at the meeting which were to support option two.

(2) The conclusion of the Core Strategy Group was endorsement to option two, with two provisos which had been recognised within the report and its appendices. Those related to the implementation and the Equality Impact Assessment. The Supporting People Programme would ensure that the priorities of the CSG in relation to the implementation of the savings were delivered.

(3) During a wide ranging and comprehensive discussion members of the Commissioning Body raised a number of points of detail to which members of the Supporting People Team responded as appropriate. It was agreed that there would be an impact assessment provided by the team to the next Commissioning Body relating to the impact of the current reduction in investment in floating support. It was also agreed that the Supporting People team would undertake joint assessments of the service users who were potentially impacted by the savings. This would identify mitigations that could be put in place to reduce the impact of delivering the savings. The Supporting People team confirmed that a report on commissioning floating support would be submitted to the Core Strategy Group in May and the Commissioning Body in June 2011.

(4) Subject paragraph 3 above, the Commissioning Body agreed that Option 2 should be implemented which would achieve savings of £7m on the Supporting People Programme between 2011/12 and 2012/13.

### 22. Administration of the Programme

(Item 7 – report by Angela Slaven, Director of Youth and Community Support Services)

(1) The Kent Supporting People Programme was required to deliver a 22% Savings target within the main programme. The Commissioning Body had suggested that the team should commit to the same level of saving on the cost of the administration of the Programme, and this report sets out the proposals for achieving that.

(2) The Commissioning Body noted the report and agreed to the proposal that the Supporting People Programme should deliver a saving of 22% in administration by reducing the number of staff within the team and by reducing other costs associated with the administration of the Programme. In order to achieve these savings the administration costs of the team would be reduced to  $\pounds$ 540K per annum from 2012/13 with staffing numbers being reduced from twelve to nine.

#### 23. Finance Report

*(Item 8 -report by Angela* Slaven, Director of Youth and Community Support Services)

(1) This report provided details of the anticipated outturn in relation to the administration of the Programme and the commissioned services within the Programme. There would be a further report submitted once the current financial year was over, which would provide a final financial position for the current financial year.

(2) The Commissioning Body noted the report.

### 24. Memorandum of Understanding

(Item 9 – report by Angela Slaven, Director of Youth and Community Support Services)

(1) The Commissioning Body had previously asked whether or not it would be possible for it to be granted delegated authority so that it could have some jurisdiction over the setting of the budget in relation to the Supporting People Programme.

(2) Having sought appropriate advice it was the case that the ultimate responsibility and jurisdiction for the management of the Programme had to be with the County Council. And although the Memorandum of Understanding did not have any legal status it provided emphasis and transparency to the way the Commissioning Body undertook its work on the basis of best practice. Therefore whilst the Commissioning Body could not of itself have overall control of the budget it nonetheless played an essential and effective part in the management of the pooled financial resource.

(3) The Commissioning Body agreed that The Memorandum of Understanding agreed on 20 January 2011 should remain in place and that it be noted that it was not possible for the Commissioning Body to be given any formal delegated powers related to the Programme. The Commissioning Body further noted that it would be advised in good time of the indicative budget allocation to made to the Programme by the County Council.

### 25. Any other business

(Item 11)

Angela Slaven informed the Commissioning Body that KCC was going through a period of structural change.

#### 26. Oliver Mills

As this would be the last meeting that Oliver Mills would be attending Mr Hill placed on record his thanks on behalf of the membership for all the work and support Oliver had given to the Commissioning Body and he wished him well for the future.

## 27. Date of the Next Meeting

(Item 12)

The date of the next meeting of the Commissioning Body is on Thursday 30 June 2011 in the Darent Room, Sessions House County Hall, Maidstone commencing at 2:00 PM